

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
PENSION COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 30TH NOVEMBER, 2015

7.00 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Pension Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:
Substitutes:

Councillor Sunita Gordon
Councillor Richard Broadbent
Neil Garratt, Edward Joyce, Nick Mattey and
Hamish Pollock
Manuel Abellan, David Hicks, Steve Penneck

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA
20 November 2015

Enquiries to: Susanne Wicks, Committee Support Team Leader, Tel: 020 8770 6540 |
Email: susanne.wicks@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTION

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)
To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September
2015.

4.

MEMBER TRAINING

5.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports revealing
exempt information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972.”

6.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE TO SEPTEMBER 2015
(Pages 7 - 20)

7.

PRESENTATION BY M&G (BONDS) AND NEWTON (GLOBAL EQUITIES)
FOR INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE RESULTS TO SEPTEMBER 2015

8.

RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY FUND INVESTMENTS (Pages 21 - 24)

9.

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENTS (Pages 25 - 34)

10.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE (Pages 35 - 44)

11.

INTERIM ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF THE PENSION FUND AT 31 MARCH
2015 (Pages 45 - 48)

12.

REVIEW OF THE WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 49 - 50)

13.

ANY URGENT ITEM BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

14.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will take place on 14 March 2015.

2

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound continuously. Leave the
building immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire
exit into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.
First Aid can be obtained from Civic Security in reception.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Fire
Exit

Lower Square
Entrance

Holiday Inn
Car Park
3

Reminder – Declaration of Interests

Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at this
meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on the
matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge
of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the interest
and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held whilst that
business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an interest
you should always declare it.

4

Page 1

Agenda Item 3
Pension Committee
7 September 2015

PENSION COMMITTEE
7 September 2015 at 7.00 pm
MEMBERS:
*Absent

15.

Councillor Sunita Gordon (Chair), Councillor Richard Broadbent
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors *Neil Garratt, Edward Joyce,
Hamish Pollock and Nick Mattey

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTION

Apologies were received from Councillor Neil Garratt and Nick Mattey.
16.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.
17.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2015 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chair.
18.

MEMBER TRAINING

David Walker, Senior Investment Consultant at Hymans Robertson delivered a short
training session to members on infrastructure investment. He explained what
infrastructure was and the advantages and disadvantages of investing in it as well as
the risks and implementation options. He updated the Committee on the recent
budget announcement regarding saving money through pooled investments and
explained the potential pooling options.
19.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the
following three items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information, as defined in paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972.
20.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE TO JUNE 2015

Sue Hogg, the Interim Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, introduced this
report that showed the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers for
the quarter ending 30 June 2015, performance in the last twelve months, annualised
rolling three year performance against target benchmark and performance since
inception. She highlighted the significant changes in the value of holdings in the
table under paragraph 4.3. It was noted that pooled multi assets was down on the
benchmark of 0.9% at -1.6% due to falling Government bond yields and the
changing position in the oil markets. There was underperformance from Blackrock
due to one of their larger investments in Premier Marinas; this property was sold in
the last quarter. Total assets value change was -2.6% and which was due to
volatility during the quarter mainly in equity markets.
Councillor Joyce queried the figures for Harding Loevner and Schroders under
paragraph 4.12 as they were exactly the same. It was confirmed that these were
correct.
1

Agenda Item 3

Page 2

Pension Committee
7 September 2015

RESOLVED: That the Pension Committee notes the performance of the Pension
Fund Investment Managers.
21.
PRESENTATION BY PARTNERS GROUP (INFRASTRUCTURE)
The Committee received an exempt report from Sergio Jovele and Sarah Brewer,
Partners Group. They reported recent company changes with a new office opening
in Houston where the majority of the energy market would be dealt with. They gave
examples of investments they had made on behalf of Sutton and explained why they
had made them and the things they were looking for e.g. flexibility and return. Whilst
it was early days in the programme the commitment level had increased to 62.6% to
the end of June 2015. There had also been a net return of 7.7% since inception.
They responded to Members detailed questions regarding investments, returns and
risks.
In response to a query regarding the level of investment into fossil fuels, Sarah
Brewer undertook to provide a breakdown of the portfolio assets.
22.

PRESENTATION BY BLACKROCK (PROPERTY)

Christopher Head and Paul Tebbit, Blackrock, presented their exempt report to the
Committee. They described the key features of investments and explained the
performance of the various sector and where they had underperformed or had done
well. They also described their outlook and strategy for return.
They responded to Members detailed questions regarding performance and
investments.
On conclusion of discussion on the exempt items of business the meeting was
reopened to the press and public.
23.

LONDON COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT VEHICLE (CIV)

Hugh Grover, CEO for the London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV presented this
report that summarised the progress made in setting up the London Local
Government Pension Scheme CIV and proposed delegating authority to the
Strategic Director of Resources in consultation with the Chair of Pensions
Committee to settle any contracts concerned with the CIV on behalf of the borough
and pension fund where the evidence indicated that it was likely to result in longterm financial benefit for the Council or Pension Fund.
The CIV was reaching the point of “live operation” and would in due course require
the Committee to assess the merits for the Fund to transfer assets or invest directly
into funds held on the CIV, where this was deemed as beneficial for the Fund to do
so. The report also outlined the need for the Fund to invest £150k into the CIV to be
held as regulatory capital.
In response to Members questions Hugh reported that:
 Sutton has invested in two of the four current fund managers of the CIV.
 That each fund would have sub funds into which investments could be made
whether or not they were originally invested
 Regulatory capital had been agreed at £150k.
2

Page 3

Agenda Item 3
Pension Committee
7 September 2015




The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) was supportive of what the London
CIV was doing.
All personnel of the new Board had to be formally approved by the FCA.

In response to a query from Councillor Broadbent regarding the report
recommendation 2.4, it was confirmed that the Chair would consult with Members
but that the delegation was to the Strategic Director. Members would be informed of
any decisions taken via the delegated decision notice procedure.
RESOLVED:
1. That the update on progress in setting up the London Collective Investment
Vehicle was noted.
2. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Resources in consultation with
the Chair of Pension Committee to settle any contracts concerned with the CIV
on behalf of the Council and Pension Fund.
3. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Resources in consultation with
the Chair of Pension Committee to invest sums required for regulatory capital to
the London CIV to meet the requirements for Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)
authorisation.
4. That where circumstances arise and the Committee is not available for
consultation, delegate to the Strategic Director of Resources in consultation with
the Chair of Pension Committee the decision to agree to the transition of Pension
Fund assets to the London CIV where the Fund has a pre-existing relationship
with the investment manager and where the transfer of such assets is financially
advantageous to the Pension Fund.
24.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

Gerald Almeroth presented this update report on the main work streams impacting
pension administration and highlighted the number of members taking the 50/50
option.
It was noted that the team was still not working at normal levels due to the
replacement of the software. Gerald Almeroth assured the Committee that the team
were progressing. He also explained that the Pension Administration teams would
be a shared service between Kingston and Sutton and that Sutton would be the host
borough.
RESOLVED: To note the report.
25.

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PENSION FUND 2014/15

The Committee considered the annual report for the pension fund covering the
financial year 2014/15.
In response to clarifications sought it was reported that:
 The Annual General Meeting (AGM) received highlights of the annual report.

3

Agenda Item 3

Page 4

Pension Committee
7 September 2015




That reviews were built into the committee cycle e.g. the Investment Strategy
as well as the annual report being the vehicle for review.
That the Investment Strategy was reviewed every three years following the
actuarial valuation and was due to reviewed again by early 2017.

Councillor Broadbent questioned whether the committee had reviewed its
performance effectively to which Gerald Almeroth responded that the governance
review report on the agenda was part of that process. David Walker also explained
that initially it was questioned if the Committee would be able to meet with all fund
managers, due to the increase in numbers, but the committee had managed to
achieve that.
The Committee requested the following actions/amendments be undertaken:
a) A discussion about socially responsible investing to be added to the
Committee workplan.
b) To request that the Strategic Director report back on what other Council’s do
regarding when they hold their AGM and information provided.
c) That the following amendments be made to the Annual Report:
 Section 5 – clarification on review of the investment strategy
 To amend wording of Principle 4 regarding officers’ meetings with fund
managers and the formal assessment of performance.
 To include reference to the communication strategy under Principle 6.
RESOLVED:
1. To approve the Pension Fund Annual report for 2014/15 subject to the requested
amendments being made as given above.
2. To request that a report come to the Committee regarding Principle 5 and how
this could be made fully compliant.
26.

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

The Committee considered this report that explained the revisions to the London
Borough of Sutton Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement (Appendix A to
the report) and provided assurance that the governance arrangements comply with
statutory guidance. The report also considered the impact of the Pension
Regulator’s Code of Practice 14 (Governance and administration of public sector
pension schemes).
Councillor Broadbent sought clarification of non-voting members to the Pension
Committee as described in paragraphs 4.1 and 6.3 of the compliance statement and
questioned whether they should be full members. Gerald Almeroth explained that
they were no longer representatives on the Committee and that the Employer
representative was now a member of the Pension Board. He also explained that
there may have been some confusion over the changes made mid-year but would
look at the wording of the statement to help make it clearer.

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
Pension Committee
7 September 2015

Councillor Broadbent also asked about induction training for members as stated
under paragraph 3.1 of the statement. Gerald Almeroth explained that at Members
first meeting David Walker provided an induction session and further to that a mini
session was tailored to and held at each meeting of the Committee. Councillor
Broadbent requested that non-financial aspects are covered in the future.
RESOLVED:
1. To approve the Governance Compliance Statement for inclusion within the
Pension Fund Annual Report 2014/15 subject to minor amendments by the
Strategic Director for Resources.
2. To note that a compliance statement to the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice
14 will be produced and reviewed by the Pension Board (October 2015) prior to
being reported to the Pension Committee (November 2015).
3. To request that David Walker re-provide training packs from the Members first
meeting and that provided to the Pension Board.
27.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME

RESOLVED: To request that the following items be factored into the workplan:




A discussion on socially responsible investing, and
A report back on how other Council’s deal with their annual reports and
annual general meetings.
A report back on how Principle 5 of the Annual Report can be made fully
compliant.

28.
ANY URGENT ITEM BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR
No urgent items were raised.
29.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting would take place on 30 November 2015 at 7pm.
The meeting ended at 9.55 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Pension Committee

Date: 30 November 2015

Report title:

Investment Performance of the Fund Managers to September 2015

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Sunita Gordon
Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning
020 8770 5358
Lisa Doswell, Treasury and Investments Officer
020 8770 5354

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Signed:

1.



A Smart Council

Open
Exempt (Appendix B)
Date:

20 November 2015

Summary

1.1. This report shows the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers for the quarter
ending 30 September 2015, performance in the last twelve months, annualised rolling three
year performance against target benchmark and performance since inception.
2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Pension Committee notes the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers.

3.

Background

3.1

Legal & General (L&G), Newton Investment Management (Newton), Harding Loevner,
Schroder, Baillie Gifford, Pyrford, M&G, BlackRock and Partner’s Group were employed as the
Council’s investment managers for the year ending 30 September 2015. The Council was also
invested in two separate funds; M&G UK Companies Financing Fund and Aviva Investors UK
Real Estate Fund of Funds Plan.

3.2

Under the Council’s current investment strategy a strategic target benchmark allocation of 42%
of the total fund value is to be invested in global equities managed in separate, equal sized
portfolios by Newton, Harding Loevner and Schroder’s. 13% of the fund is to be invested in UK
equities by L&G and 15% of the fund is to be split equally in absolute return pooled vehicles
managed by Baillie Gifford and Pyrford. 20% of the fund is currently targeted in bonds by M&G,
however there is a long term strategic target to bonds of 15% and 5% to infrastructure, but this
will take some time to implement. 10% of the fund is targeted in Property, split between 6% with
BlackRock and 4% with AVIVA. This is shown in the chart on the left, against the current actual
allocation of the fund on the right.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

Blackrock
6%
M&G
Bonds
20%

AVIVA
4%

Newton
14%
L&G
13%

Pyrford
8%

Harding
14%
Baillie
7%

Schroder
14%

Target Benchmark Allocation

3.3

4

Blackrock
5%
M&G
Bonds
17%

AVIVA
3%

Partners M&G
Newton
2%
1%
15%
L&G
12%

Pyrford
8%
Baillie
9%

Harding
14%
Schroder
14%

Actual Allocation of Fund as at 30/09/2015

Performance targets for all fund managers are set by the Council to obtain good investment
performance returns, whilst also balancing risk.

Performance of the Managers

4.1

The tables set out within the report show the managers’ performance for the quarter, over the
last twelve months and since inception (where possible) and a comparison against the relevant
indices in the Council’s strategic asset allocation benchmark. All figures are shown net of fees.
Appendix C (exempt information) shows the basis on which fees are calculated by each fund
manager and the fees which have been incurred for the current and previous quarter.

4.2

The investment performance monitoring service has transitioned from WM to Northern Trust
(The Fund’s custodian) and this is the second quarter in which Northern Trust’s performance
data has been used to produce this report. There are currently some timing issues with regard
to data being provided by Northern Trust. Further work is being undertaken to improve these
processes going forward.

Movement in Fund Value from 30 June 2015 to 30 September 2015
4.3

The table below shows the value of holdings with each of the fund managers as at the end of
the latest quarter and the end of the previous quarter.

Page 9

Fund Manager

Total Equities

Agenda Item 6

Value at end
30/06/15

Value at end
30/09/15

Value
change

£’000

£’000

£’000

%
Change

274,376

258,464

-15,912

-5.8

Legal & General

59,714

56,301

-3,413

-5.7

Newton

73,865

70,371

-3,494

-4.7

Harding Loevner

70,029

66,624

-3,405

-4.9

Schroder

70,768

65,168

-5,600

-7.9

Bonds

80,004

80,160

156

0.2

M&G bonds

80,004

80,160

156

0.2

Pooled Multi Asset

78,059

76,792

-1,267

-1.6

Baillie Gifford

40,381

39,317

-1,064

-2.6

Pyrford

37,678

37,475

-203

-0.5

Property

34,436

33,862

-574

-1.7

BlackRock **

22,589

21,744

-845

-3.7

AVIVA

11,847

12,118

271

2.3

Alternatives

11,451

12,509

1,058

9.2

Partner’s Group*

6,737

7,743

1,005

14.9

M&G – Co’s Financing Fund

4,714

4,766

52

1.1

16,117

8,330

-7,787

-48.3

494,443

470,117

-24,326

-4.9

Cash ***
Total Assets

*The table above shows the change in value of the holdings over the last quarter. A seventeenth
capital call payment was made to Partner’s Group on 27 July for EUR 801k. This transaction
represented approximately £569k.
** Income accrued on the BlackRock fund has been moved into a cash holding account pending
draw downs.
***The level of cash has decreased by £7,787k during the quarter. This is largely due to bulk
transfers of IT and college staff from the Sutton Pension Fund into the Kingston Fund following
shared working arrangements and also includes the cash transfer from BlackRock as outlined
above.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6

Fund Value Movement %

10.0 8.7
8.0
5.4

6.0
3.5

4.0

2.2

2.3

1.9

2.0

3.3

0.7

0.0
-2.0

-1.3

-2.3

-4.0

-3.5

-6.0

The above table excludes cash.
TOTAL FUND PERFORMANCE
Total fund performance pre and post strategy implementation
Benchmark Fund
33 months 33 months
to 31/10/12 to 31/10/12
%
%
8.7

Variance

7.8

%

Benchmark
33 months
to 30/09/15
%

-0.9

Fund
33 months
to 30/09/15
%

Variance

7.8

0.7

7.1

%

4.4

Prior to the new strategy implementation the combined fund underperformed the benchmark by
0.9% over the previous 33 months (benchmark 8.7%, actual 7.8%). Looking at performance 33
months after the new strategy was implemented the combined fund outperformed the
benchmark by 0.7% (benchmark 7.1%, actual 7.8%).

4.5

Total fund performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015
TOTAL FUND

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

Equities

55

55

-5.9

-5.8

0.1

Bonds

20

17

1.0

0.2

-0.8

Pooled Multi Asset

15

17

0.9

-1.7

-2.6

Property

10

8

3.0

2.1

-0.9

Alternatives

0

3

n/a

n/a

n/a

100.0

100.0

-2.6

-3.4

-0.8

TOTAL ASSETS

%

Page 11

4.6

Agenda Item 6

At total fund level the combined fund performance underperformed the benchmark by 0.8%
over the period achieving a return of -3.4% compared to the benchmark return of -2.6%.
Performance of individual asset classes is detailed in paragraph 4.9 onwards.

Total fund performance – longer term
TOTAL FUND

4.7

4.8

1 Year
% pa

3 Years
% pa

5 Years
% pa

Fund return

2.0

7.5

6.8

Benchmark return

2.8

7.9

7.2

Variance %

-0.8

-0.4

-0.4

At total fund level, as at September the combined fund underperformed the benchmark by 0.8%
over the past year and underperformed by 0.4% per annum over the past three years and
underperformed by 0.4% per annum over the past five years.
The bar chart below summarises the overall performance of the fund over the latest, one year,
three year and five year positions.
10
8
6
4

Fund return

Return % 2

Benchmark return

0
-2
-4

Latest Qtr 1 Year % 3 Years % 5 Years %
%
pa
pa

-6

4.9

EQUITY PERFORMANCE
Equity performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015
Manager

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

L&G

13

12

-5.7

-5.7

0.0

Newton

14

15

-6.0

-4.7

1.3

Harding Loevner

14

14

-6.0

-4.9

1.1

Schroders

14

14

-6.0

-8.1

-2.1

TOTAL EQUITIES

55

55

-5.9

-5.8

0.1

%

Page 12

Agenda Item 6

% Variance against benchmark
Newton

1.3

Harding Loevner

1.1

Schroder

-2.1

4.10 Stock markets continued tumbling during the quarter, resulting in the worst returns since 2011.
This was caused by a combination of factors, but the most significant were concerns about the
economic slowdown in China and the decision of the Federal Reserve to keep interest rates on
hold. Dramatic declines in China’s stock markets caused investors to question the health of the
Chinese economy, which has been an important area of global growth in recent years.
Elsewhere, investors fled other emerging markets due to fears that the large debts these
countries have incurred over several years for capital investments are becoming more difficult to
repay. Online and software driven businesses continued to post strong results and sectors
including electricity, tobacco and beverages did well. Mining, industrial metals and oil posted
the largest declines as industrial commodity prices continued to fall.
4.11 As shown in table 4.9, Newton outperformed the benchmark and this was underpinned by an
underweight position in emerging markets. Stock selection in the information technology sector,
particularly stock in Google, was also beneficial. Harding Loevner also outperformed the
benchmark. They benefitted similarly, by having good stocks in the more resilient sectors,
particularly health care, materials and industrials, however holdings in emerging market sectors
detracted from performance. However, Schroders underperformed the benchmark and this is
attributed to positions in commodity exposed stocks and emerging markets. Their long standing
avoidance of expensive utilities (particularly in the US) also detracted from returns, however
they benefitted from positive stock selection in financials and healthcare. Their Value based
investment strategy (large, quality, low cost companies) is still challenged by a market which
currently leans more towards Growth opportunities.

4.12 Equity performance – longer term
Manager

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return 1
Year

Variance Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%
%

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

%

L&G

-2.3

-2.3

0.0

5.5

5.5

0.0

Newton

4.3

4.3

0.0

9.5

12.1

2.6

Harding Loevner

-0.1

2.7

2.8

9.5

9.9

0.4

Schroders

-0.1

-4.9

-4.8

9.5

8.7

-0.8

%

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

4.13 As shown in the table above, over the longer term L&G and Newton matched the benchmark
during the twelve months ended September 2015, whilst Harding Loevner showed
outperformance and Schroders underperformed. Since inception, L&G matched the
benchmark, Newton and Harding Loevner outperformed the benchmark and Schroders
underperformed.
4.14 BOND PERFORMANCE
Bond performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015 (M&G)
Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

UK Index Linked

8

7.5

2.3

2.6

0.3

Alpha Opportunities
Fund

12

9.5

0.1

-1.7

-1.8

TOTAL
(Weighted Average)

20

17

1.0

0.2

-0.8

%

% Variance against benchmark
UK Index Linked

Alpha Opps Fund

0.3

-1.8

4.15 Concerns over the Greek bailout, the Chinese economy, falling commodity prices and company
specific issues all contributed to a weak environment for credit markets. Index-linked
government bonds produced positive total returns, although their performance lagged that of
conventional UK government bonds or gilts. The fund took advantage of a number of
irregularities in relative value across the index-linked UK government bond yield curve. As
shown in table 4.14 above M&G outperformed in the UK Index Linked Fund and
underperformed in the Alpha Opportunities Fund.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6

4.16

POOLED MULTI-ASSET PERFORMANCE
Pooled Multi-Asset Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015
Manager

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

Baillie Gifford

7.5

8.5

0.9

-2.8

-3.7

Pyrford

7.5

8.1

0.9

-0.5

-1.4

TOTAL POOLED
MULTI-ASSET

15.0

16.6

0.9

-1.7

-2.6

%

% Variance against benchmark
Baillie Gifford -3.7

Pyrford

4.17

-1.4

Over the quarter Baillie Gifford underperformed the benchmark, which is largely attributed to
large weightings in listed equities, emerging market bonds and high yield credit. A number of
asset classes with low correlation to equity markets provided some protection, including active
currency, absolute return and insurance-linked securities. Pyrford has reported strong returns
from UK equities and bonds for the quarter, however their holdings in overseas equities
negatively affected performance, particularly in Asian stocks, contributing towards their
underperformance in the quarter.

4.18 Pooled Multi-Asset Performance – longer term
Manager

4.19

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return 1
Year

%

%

Variance Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%
%

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

Baillie Gifford

3.7

0.5

-3.2

3.6

4.3

0.7

Pyrford

3.7

1.6

-2.1

3.6

2.5

-1.1

As shown in the table above, over the longer term Baillie Gifford and Pyrford both
underperformed the benchmark during the twelve months ended September 2015. Since
inception, Baillie Gifford has outperformed the benchmark and Pyrford has underperformed.

Page 15

4.20

Agenda Item 6

PROPERTY PERFORMANCE
Property Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015

Manager

Target
Allocation

Fund
Benchmark
Allocation
Return

%

%

%

Fund
Return
Income
%

Fund
Return
Capital
%

Total Fund
Return

Variance

%

%

BlackRock

6

5

3.0

0.9

1.5

2.4

-0.6

AVIVA

4

3

3.0

0.8

1.5

2.3

-0.7

% Variance against benchmark
Blackrock

AVIVA

-0.6

-0.7

4.21 The UK commercial property market had another good quarter, however returns were slightly
down on the previous quarter. Real estate yields are still attractive compared with other asset
classes and investor demand remains strong. The dominant sectors are still industrials and
offices, with the retail sector remaining stable. The Central London office and retail markets
remained ahead of the other sectors and regions of the UK. Rents in these markets increased
during the quarter and it is now occupiers driving up rents, rather than investors driving up
prices.

4.22 Both BlackRock and AVIVA underperformed the benchmark in the quarter. BlackRock’s
underperformance continues to be attributed to contra-cyclical, lower risk assets, which provide
outperformance in lower real estate markets and underperformance in higher markets. During
the quarter BlackRock used the proceeds from the sale of Premier Marinas to complete four
new purchases totalling £187.4m. AVIVA has benefitted from its specialist industrial and
London office holdings. A strong performer is also their student accommodation fund. However
a considerable negative impact continues to be made by their holding in the Standard Life UK
Retail Park Trust. This is primarily due to the sale of two lower quality assets below valuation.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6

4.23 Property Performance – longer term
Manager

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return 1
Year

Variance Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%
%

%

%

RREEF/Blackrock

14.4

12.2

-2.2

AVIVA

14.4

9.6

-4.8

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

4.0

0.3

-3.7

9.1

8.4

-0.7

%

4.24 As shown in the table above, Blackrock and AVIVA both underperformed the benchmark during
the twelve months ending September 2015 and also since inception.
4.25

ALTERNATIVES PERFORMANCE
Alternatives Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2015
Manager

Benchmark
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Fund
Return
%

Partner’s Group –
Infrastructure

0

2

6.0

M&G – UK
companies financing
fund

0

1

1.1

4.26 Partner’s Group and M&G are not measured as part of the fund’s overall strategic benchmark.
Due to the way investment is made with Partner’s Group, it is not meaningful to make
comparisons with their performance target at this stage.

4.27 Alternatives Performance – longer term
Manager

Fund
Return 1
Year
%

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Partner’s Group

8.3

3.7

M&G

3.4

4.6

4.28 During the twelve months ending 30 September 2015, M&G has returned 4.6% and since
inception they have returned 4.6%.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

5

ANNUALISED ROLLING 3 YEARS TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

5.1

The annual performance targets for equities, bonds and pooled multi-asset fund managers are
set over a rolling three year period. However, due to the changes which have been made to the
fund as a whole, it will not be possible to assess the performance of M&G, Newton, Harding
Loevner, Schroder’s, Baillie Gifford or Pyrford until they have been established within the fund
for three years. With the exception of M&G (appointed in May 2014) this assessment will start
for the quarter ended 31/03/16.

6

Options Considered

6.1

Not applicable

7

Impacts and Implications
Financial

7.1

The financial implications are addressed within the report.
Legal

7.2

There are no legal issues arising from this report.

8

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A
B

Title
Current Investment Strategy Benchmarks and Targets
Manager Fees (Exempt)

Background Documents
Northern Trust Investment Performance Reports

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 19 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
N/A

Comments checked by
Lyndsey Gamble
N/A

Page 18

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A
CURRENT INVESTMENT STRATEGY BENCHMARKS ANDTARGETS
Each manager has been set a specific benchmark as well as a performance target against which they
will be measured. This is shown in the table below. The Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark
is shown in the performance tables.
Manager

Mandate

Tactical Benchmark

Performance Target

Newton

Global equity
pooled fund active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

2% above benchmark over
rolling 3 year period (gross of
fees)

Harding Loevner

Global equity
pooled fund –
active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

3% above benchmark over
rolling 3 year period (gross of
fees)

Schroder

Global equity
pooled fund active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

3% above benchmark over
rolling 3 year period (gross of
fees)

Legal & General

UK Global
equities pooled
fund – passive

UK - FT All Share Index

To track the benchmark

Baillie Gifford

Pooled multi
asset

3 month LIBOR + 3%

3% above benchmark over
rolling 3 year period (gross of
fees)

Pyrford

Pooled multi
asset

3 month LIBOR + 3%

3% above benchmark over
rolling 3 year period (gross of
fees)

Aberdeen

Bonds

3% FTSE Uk Gilts> 15 yrs,
10% BAML>10 yrs, 2%
Citigroup WGBI, 3% 20year
inflation swap, 2% FSTE A
UK Gilt Gov Index-Linked

0.75% above benchmark over
rolling 3 years period (gross of
fees)

M&G

Bonds - Alpha
Fund

3 Month LIBOR + 3%

3 Month LIBOR + 3 to 5 %.

M&G

Bonds - Index
Linked

FTSE A British Government
Over 5 Years Index-Linked

0.75% above benchmark over
rolling 3 years period (gross of
fees)

RREEF/ BlackRock

Pooled Property IPD UK All Pooled Property
Funds
Funds Index

To outperform the benchmark

AVIVA

Property Fund
of Funds

IPD UK All Pooled Property
Funds Index

To outperform the benchmark

Partner’s Group

Infrastructure

No tactical benchmark, but
targets an absolute return of

No outperformance objective

Page 19
Manager

Mandate

Tactical Benchmark

Agenda Item 6

Performance Target

8% per annum
M&G

UK Companies
Financing Fund

No tactical benchmark, but
assessed against 7 day
LIBID and targets return of
10% pa net of fees

No outperformance objective

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Pension Committee

Report title:

Residential Property Fund Investment

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

1.

Date:

30 November 2015

Sue Hogg, Interim Head of Financial Strategy and Planning
020 8770 5260



A Smart Council

Open
Exempt (Appendix A)
Date:

16 November 2015

Summary

1.1. This reports provides a brief summary of the process followed to select a preferred residential
property investment product and seeks approval of the Committee to appoint Invesco for this
mandate.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That the Pension Committee approve the investment in residential property in the Invesco Real
Estate UK Residential Fund of between 2% and 4% of Fund assets.

3.

Background

3.1

At the last Pension Committee meeting in June 2015, the proposed investment in residential
property was agreed along with the process to be followed to select and invest with a provider.

3.2

Hymans Robertson’s report attached at appendix A sets out the selection process that was
followed and the reasons for proposing the Invesco fund for this investment.

4

Issues

4.1

Under the Local Government Pension Scheme regulations manager appointments need to be
carried out using the full OJEU procurement procedures. However direct investments can be
made by funds without following these procedures. Where a Fund decides to purchase shares
or units in an existing pooled fund this is interpreted as a direct investment rather than a

Agenda Item 8

Page 22

manager appointment. This allows the investments to be made using a more streamlined and
cost effective selection process.
4.2

The market for this type of investment has matured in recent years, a number of fund managers
who either have an existing residential property fund available for investment or are in the
process of launching a fund, were invited to submit a formal tender proposal for consideration.

4.3

The responses were evaluated and scored against a number of criteria:
- Proposed delivery mechanism
- Corporate capability
- Resourcing
- Investment philosophy & process
- Risk management
- Fees and costs

4.4

The fund managers that were shortlisted were then interviewed by Council Officers and advisors
from Hymans Robertson on 2 November 2015. Details of all the response can be found in
Appendix A, this includes the scoring for each fund manager.

4.5

Invesco are recommended as the preferred fund manager for this investment as they have a
well-developed pooled fund proposition that will shortly be available for investment. Supporting
this recommendation are Invesco’s underlying residential property management credentials.
The firm has developed its expertise in residential property ahead of making any investments
and evidenced this through transactions already completed in both the UK and overseas. The
full rationale for selecting Invesco for this mandate is set out in appendix A.

5

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

The proposed investment in residential property would constitute between 2% and 4% of the
Pension Fund with a value of between £10-20m. The investment is in line with the investment
strategy as the Fund has a target exposure to property of 10% with current exposure at only
6%.
Legal

5.2

The approach being recommended by Hymans Robertson is to invest directly into a fund which
has been developed by Invesco and will shortly be available for investment. The Pension Fund
would be part of a larger fund and subject to the terms of the prospectus of the fund rather than
having any contractual relationship. However, it is subject to the Pension Fund’s Statement of
Investment Principles, its Investment Policy and any other internal processes of the fund which
is relevant to what is being proposed.

Page 23

6

Agenda Item 8

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Hymans Robertson paper on proposed residential property
investment (Exempt from publication)

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 16 November 2015

Comments Sought
N/A
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Fabiola Hickson

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Pension Committee

Report title:

Responsible Investment

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

Date:

30 November 2015

Sue Hogg, Interim Head of Financial Strategy and Planning
020 8770 5260



A Smart Council

Open
Exempt (Appendix B)

Signed:

Date:

16 November 2015

1.

Summary

1.1

This reports provides an overview of responsible investment within the existing investment
strategy and recommends a review of environmental, social and governance factors that might
impact on the Pension Fund for further consideration.

2.

Recommendations

That the Pension Committee agree that:
2.1

A review is undertaken of the environmental, social and governance factors that may impact on
the fund with a report back to the Committee on the outcome of the review and options on future
actions.

2.2

Fund managers are requested to adopt the Institutional Shareholders Committee Statement of
Principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents.

3.

Background

3.1

At the last Pension Committee meeting in June 2015, a report was requested on responsible
investment within the Pension Fund and how environmental, social and governance factors can
be taken into account when considering the approach to investments.

3.2

Hymans Robertson have produced a report on this issue, which is attached at appendix B.

Agenda Item 9

Page 26

4

Issues

4.1

Sutton’s current approach towards responsible investment falls under the heading of “Socially
Responsible Investments” and can be found within the statement of investment principles (an
extract of which is included in appendix B).

4.2

In 2001 following a review of institutional investment, a set of ten principles were developed for
all institutional investors to work to. Lord Myners conducted the review and so the principles
became known as the “Myners principles”. The principles were revised during 2008 and a new
set of six principles published. In December 2009 CIPFA issued statutory guidance for Local
Government Pension Schemes to determine their level of compliance with the principles.

4.3

The Myners six principles of investment practice include a principle on responsible ownership,
Sutton’s Pension fund is currently only partially compliant with this principle as we have not to
date adopted, or ensured our fund managers adopt, the Institutional Shareholders Committee
Statement of Principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents (attached at appendix
A). The code aims to improve long-term returns, reduce the risk of catastrophic outcomes due
to bad strategic decisions and to help with the efficient exercise of governance responsibilities.

4.4

The Law Commission published a report in July 2014 on the fiduciary duty of investment
intermediaries, this summarises the law governing the duties of those involved in the investment
process and offered guidance on how trustees and managers can take account of responsible
investment factors.

4.5

This report reiterates that financially material environmental, social and governance should be
taken into account, but it is up to trustees to decide whether a factor is financially material. If
non-financial factors are taken into account there must be good reason to think that all pension
scheme members will agree and that there should be no risk of significant financial detriment.

4.6

There are three ways to manage responsible investment issues:
- divest - this removes exposure to compromised investments but reduces diversification by
excluding a sector of the market
- tilt - invest more with non-fossil fuel companies without excluding all
- engage and influence corporate behaviour.

4.7

The funds statement of investment principles summarises the current position. Using this
document as a starting point it is recommended that a review is undertaken of the
environmental, social and governance factors that may impact on the fund with a report back to
the Committee on the outcome of the review and options on future actions. This review will also
consider the adoption by the pension fund or fund managers of the Institutional Shareholders
Committee Statement of Principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents in line
with best practice.

4.8

Some local authority pension funds are members of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF) which is a collaborative shareholder engagement group. The LAPFF has 65 local
authority pension fund members from across the country who discuss investment issues and

Page 27

Agenda Item 9

shareholder engagement. Responsible Investment is one of the areas that would be discussed
by the forum who will then form a collective view on what best practice is for local authority
pension funds.
5

Impacts and Implications

5.1

Financial
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The financial impact of any
proposed future changes in the approach to investment of the pension fund will be reported to
the Committee as part of the review.

5.2

Legal
There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

6

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Institutional Shareholders Committee Statement of Principles

on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents
B

Hymans Robertson paper on Responsible Investment (exempt
from publication)

Background Documents
Myners revised principles 2008

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 19 November 2015

Comments Sought
N/A
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Fabiola Hickson

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Agenda Item 9

INSTITUTIONAL SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEE
CODE ON THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF INSTITUTIONAL
INVESTORS
Introduction & Scope
This Code has been drawn up by the Institutional Shareholders’ Committee1
and covers the activities of both institutional shareholders and those that
invest as agents, including reporting by the latter to their clients.
The Code aims to enhance the quality of the dialogue of institutional investors
with companies to help improve long-term returns to shareholders, reduce the
risk of catastrophic outcomes due to bad strategic decisions, and help with the
efficient exercise of governance responsibilities.
The Code sets out best practice for institutional investors that choose to
engage with the companies in which they invest. The Code does not
constitute an obligation to micro-manage the affairs of investee companies or
preclude a decision to sell a holding, where this is considered the most
effective response to concerns.
In the Code the term “institutional investor” includes institutional shareholders
such as pension funds, insurance companies, and investment trusts and other
collective investment vehicles and any agents appointed to act on their behalf.
Institutional shareholders’ mandates given to fund managers or agents should
specify the policy on stewardship, if any, that is to be followed.
Institutional shareholders are free to choose whether or not to engage but
their choice should be a considered one, based on their investment
objectives. Their managers or agents are then responsible for ensuring that
they comply with the terms of the mandate as agreed2.
The Code applies to institutional investors on a comply-or-explain basis.
Institutional investors that do not wish to engage should state publicly that the
Code is not relevant to them and explain why.

1

ISC members are: the Association of British Insurers; the Association of Investment Trust Companies; the National
Association of Pension Funds; and the Investment Management Association.
2

In the case of pension funds best practice is set out in the 2008 Myners’ Principles under Principle 5*.
* Trustees should adopt, or ensure their investment managers adopt, the Institutional Shareholders’
Committee Statement of Principles on the responsibilities of shareholders and agents.
A statement of the scheme’s policy on responsible ownership should be included in the Statement of
Investment Principles.
Trustees should report periodically to members on the discharge of such responsibilities.

Agenda Item 9

Page 30

2

Institutional investors that elect to engage should provide a statement on how
they implement the Principles in practice. Institutional investors that apply the
Code
will
be
listed
on
the
ISC’s
website
(www.institutionalshareholderscommittee.org.uk).
This statement should
contain information on what steps have been or will be taken in respect of
verification.
Fulfilling fiduciary obligations to end-beneficiaries in accordance with the spirit
of the Code may have implications for institutional investors’ resources. These
should be sufficient to allow them to fulfill their responsibilities effectively,
commensurate with the benefits derived. The duty of institutional investors is
to their end-beneficiaries and/or clients and not to the wider public.
The Code may also be applied by overseas investors, including Sovereign
Wealth Funds. The ISC would welcome their commitment to the Code and
may also list those that choose to sign up on the ISC’s website. The Code will
be reviewed biennially by the ISC in line with the FRC’s review process for the
Combined Code.
Principle 1: Institutional investors should publicly disclose their policy
on how they will discharge their stewardship responsibilities
Guidance
The policy should include:
How investee companies will be monitored. In order for monitoring to be
effective, where necessary, an active dialogue may need to be entered
into with the investee company’s board.
The strategy on intervention.
Internal arrangements, including how stewardship is integrated with the
wider investment process.
The policy on voting and the use made of, if any, proxy voting or other
voting advisory service, including information on how they are used (see
Principle 6).
The policy on considering explanations made in relation to the Combined
Code.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9

3

Principle 2: Institutional investors should have a robust policy on
managing conflicts of interest in relation to stewardship and this policy
should be publicly disclosed.
Guidance
An institutional investor’s duty is to act in the interests of all clients and/or
beneficiaries when considering matters such as engagement and voting.
Conflicts of interest will inevitably arise from time to time, which may include
when voting on matters affecting a parent company or client.
Institutional investors should put in place and maintain a policy for managing
conflicts of interest.
Principle 3:
companies

Institutional investors should monitor their investee

Guidance
Investee companies should be monitored to determine when it is necessary to
enter into an active dialogue with their boards. This monitoring should be
regular, and the process clearly communicable and checked periodically for
its effectiveness.
As part of this monitoring, institutional investors should:
seek to satisfy themselves, to the extent possible, that the investee
company’s board and sub-committee structures are effective, and that
independent directors provide adequate oversight; and
maintain a clear audit trail, for example, records of private meetings held
with companies, of votes cast, and of reasons for voting against the
investee company’s management, for abstaining, or for voting with
management in a contentious situation.
Institutional investors should endeavour to identify problems at an early stage
to minimise any loss of shareholder value. If they have concerns they should
seek to ensure that the appropriate members of the investee company’s
board are made aware of them.
Institutional investors may not wish to be made insiders. They will expect
investee companies and their advisers to ensure that information that could
affect their ability to deal in the shares of the company concerned is not
conveyed to them without their agreement.

Agenda Item 9

Page 32

4

Principle 4: Institutional investors should establish clear guidelines on
when and how they will escalate their activities as a method of
protecting and enhancing shareholder value
Guidance
Institutional investors should set out the circumstances when they will actively
intervene and regularly assess the outcomes of doing so. Intervention should
be considered regardless of whether an active or passive investment policy is
followed. In addition, being underweight is not, of itself, a reason for not
intervening. Instances when institutional investors may want to intervene
include when they have concerns about the company’s strategy and
performance, its governance or its approach to the risks arising from social
and environmental matters.
Initial discussions should take place on a confidential basis. However, if
boards do not respond constructively when institutional investors intervene,
then institutional investors will consider whether to escalate their action, for
example, by:
holding additional meetings with management specifically to discuss
concerns;
expressing concerns through the company’s advisers;
meeting with the Chairman, senior independent director, or with all
independent directors;
intervening jointly with other institutions on particular issues;
making a public statement in advance of the AGM or an EGM;
submitting resolutions at shareholders’ meetings; and
requisitioning an EGM, possibly to change the board.
Principle 5: Institutional investors should be willing to act collectively
with other investors where appropriate
Guidance
At times collaboration with other investors may be the most effective manner
in which to engage.

Page 33

Agenda Item 9

5

Collaborative engagement may be most appropriate at times of significant
corporate or wider economic stress, or when the risks posed threaten the
ability of the company to continue.
Institutional investors should disclose their policy on collective engagement.
Institutional investors when participating in collective engagement should
have due regard to their policies on conflicts of interest and insider
information.
Principle 6: Institutional investors should have a clear policy on voting
and disclosure of voting activity
Guidance
Institutional investors should seek to vote all shares held. They should not
automatically support the board.
If they have been unable to reach a satisfactory outcome through active
dialogue then they should register an abstention or vote against the
resolution. In both instances, it is good practice to inform the company in
advance of their intention and the reasons why.
Institutional investors should disclose publicly voting records and if they do not
explain why.
Principle 7: Institutional investors should report periodically on their
stewardship and voting activities
Guidance
Those that act as agents should regularly report to their clients details on how
they have discharged their responsibilities. Such reports will be likely to
comprise both qualitative as well as quantitative information. The particular
information reported, including the format in which details of how votes have
been cast are be presented, should be a matter for agreement between
agents and their principals.
Transparency is an important feature of effective stewardship. Institutional
investors should not, however, be expected to make disclosures that might be
counterproductive. Confidentiality in specific situations may well be crucial to
achieving a positive outcome.

Those that act as principals, or represent the interests of the end-investor,
should report at least annually to those to whom they are accountable on their
policy and its execution.

Agenda Item 9

Page 34

6

Those that sign up to this Code should consider obtaining an independent
audit opinion on their engagement and voting processes having regard to the
standards in AAF 01/063 and SAS 70.4 The existence of such assurance
certification should be publicly disclosed.

3
4

Assurance reports on internal controls of service organisations made available to third parties
Statement on Auditing Standards No.70: Reports on the processing of transactions by service organizations

Page 35

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Pension Committee

Report title:

Pension Administration Update

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Cllr Sunita Gordon

Corporate Plan Priorities:

 A Smart Council

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

1.

Date:

30 November 2015

Andy Banham, Head of Pensions
020 8770 5291

Date:

19 November 2015

Summary

1.1. This report provides an update on the main work streams impacting pension administration for
the period September to October 2015.
2.

Recommendations

That the Pension Committee:
2.1

Consider and note the Pensions administration update report.

2.2

Specifically, Members to note the approach being proposed for progressing the shared Pension
Administration service with RB Kingston in paragraph 4.3.

3.

Background

3.1

The Pensions Section administers the Local Government Pension Scheme on behalf of the
Council, Sutton Housing Partnership, Carshalton College, and 46 other employers including offpayroll & academy schools and contractors.

4.

Issues

4.1
●

Redundancy & Early Retirement.
The Council decided to run an invitation to staff to express an interest in Voluntary
Redundancy which will run from 6 – 30 November 2015. An Excel Redundancy Pay calculator
was developed with HR/Finance colleagues and staff are directed to initially use this to

Agenda Item 10

Page 36

estimate their entitlement before lodging an expression of interest by the deadline. Any
request for estimates of pension entitlement and employer costing for interested staff age 55
or over are to be requested by HR only.
●

There is continuing demand for costing of redundancies for employing Directorates savings
proposals mainly under the Smarter Council programme. In addition, there is increasing
demand for actuarial assessment for staff being TUPE transferred into hosted services or
other commissioning arrangements. This is detailed below.

●

Actual terminations will require processing of entitlements.
Pensions Administration System – Replacement with Civica Universal Pensions Management
(UPM):

4.2
●

The team continue to consolidate their use of the new system, therefore, although still not
business as usual, as we do not yet have a fully functioning system as referred to in the bullet
points below. The position is improving with the majority of process now working correctly and
the backlog of individual cases, which need inputting into the system, is reducing. Urgent work
continues to be prioritised and no new pension payments have been missed or delayed. The
Year-end 2014/15 bulk processing is now progressing - see 4.5 – although due to the
additional pay and member data required for the new LGPS 2014 which must be posted by
individual employers (approx 50) and the subsequent calculation of new CARE pension
entitlement, this will take considerably longer than in previous years.

●

The scheduled release of updated calculations across all Civica new clients is being
progressed. The latest September 2015 calculation fix release was recently moved into UPM
Live environment. The second UPM User Group (12 Administering Authorities) held in
Wolverhampton was attended on this occasion by the RBK Pensions Manager representing
both K&S.

●

Refining of agreed K&S standard letters, documentation and processes continues following
the combining of Kingston & Sutton (K&S) databases. Any changes are now only required
once.

●

The Civica “Blitz Team” were on site (with additional remote support) in September to make
any necessary changes to the system set up to ensure it is working correctly and provide
additional training to ensure the team(s) are optimising its functionality. Some changes will
require development and will be included in a future software release. Known issues are
logged with the Civica Support Team for scheduled resolution based on impact score. Regular
weekly calls continue to review / progress logged issues.

●

Valuation Processes (as amended) have been used to provide Govt Actuary Dept (GAD) with
data for the initial collection exercise the for cost cap fund valuation as at 31 March 2014
(national requirement).

●

The Employer self-serve module has been installed into the UPM test environment and after
agreed K&S scoping configured ahead of planned testing with selected pilot fund employers;
for LBS these are Carshalton College and Sutton Grammar School. General release is
planned for early in 2016. This will be followed by the introduction of Employee Self Serve.

4.3 Shared K&S Pensions Administration service.
●

Following the implementation of the K&S shared Civica UPM system, progress on the second
stage of the project to create a shared service with Kingston’s Pensions Administration Team

Page 37

Agenda Item 10

continues as agreed, with Sutton as host borough. Please see attached Appendix 1, Sutton
and Kingston Shared Service Background Note.
●

The Team Managers’ now attend the Shared Service Pension Project Board meetings.

●

A Staff Engagement Event for all staff affected will be held on 25 November 2015 when the
teams will be asked to:
- review what’s worked from phase one, reflect on what’s been achieved and what
we’ve learnt;
- share information on what challenges and opportunities face the future service
- begin to identify what a shared pension service structure should look like.

●

The proposal is for a transitional shared service to be in place from 1 April 2016 with the final
consolidated new service / structure commencing from 1 April 2017.

4.4 HR/Payroll system (i-Trent) & service (Agilisys)
●
●

Staff Payrolls:
The UPM joiners interface is now ‘live’ and has been used to load the backlog of joiners from
April 2014 to March 2015 onto UPM ready for year end 2014/15 processing.
Leavers and Changes (address etc) are being loaded manually from Reports provided from
iTrent
Pension Payroll:
Summary of monthly pensioner payrolls since last report:
Pay period

Payees

Gross paid*

Net paid

Pay slips issued**

September 2015

3,527

£1,818,366

£1,568,003

83

October 2015

3,540

£1,838,425

£1,589,842

96

*Gross paid includes compensation payments, which are not charged to the pension fund.

**All pensioners receive a pay slip in March & April each year and otherwise only when
net pay difference is greater than £5 when compared to the previous month.
4.5 Year End 2014/15 & New Year
● The new format returns containing all the new LGPS 2014 and LGPS 2008 pay and
contribution details have been received from scheme employers and iTrent Client Team for
the borough payrolls.
●

These are expected to be processed into UPM member records in November using the
Annual Returns process with necessary K&S amendments / settings, followed by the
calculation of all members’ CARE pension earned in 2014/15. Annual Benefit Statements
2014 will then need to be produced using UPM for the first time.

●

The Pensions Regulator (tPR) has communicated with all LGPS Administering Authorities (via
the LGA) to remind them of the legislative deadline for providing annual benefit statements

Agenda Item 10

Page 38

(ABS) to members, following the LGA survey, which revealed only 7 (of the 76 authorities that
responded) had managed to issue the ABS by the new statutory deadline of 31 August 2015.
●

Most respondents cited “teething problems” with the introduction of the LGPS2014 and
additional data responsibilities paced on employers and several (including K&S) the impact of
moving to a new administration system (in a very short timeframe). The Borough informed
tPR as required stating we would endeavour to issues the ABS 2015 by 30 November 2015.
A subsequent general communication from tPR also gave that date to authorities to issue ABS
(or report back). This timescales remains extremely challenging although every effort is being
made to meet the deadline, it is possible that we may not achieve production of all ABS. We
will produce those we can and anticipate full completion no later than week commencing 14
December 2015.

4.6 TUPE Transfers (potential Contractor / other Admission Agreements)
● Orchard Hill College – the College transferred from LB Sutton to become an independent
Charity from a revised date of 1 October 2015. As such, they have applied to become an
Admitted Body in the LB Sutton Pension Fund. Will require a final assessment as at the final
transfer date once actual transferees’ data provided by College and pension data compiled for
actuary.
●

Primary School Catering - contract awarded to Cater Link - commenced 1 September 2015.
Initial assessment for approx 110 active LGPS members, final assessment on actual transfer
obtained.

●

New Academy School assessments have been undertaken for the following:
The Avenue Primary converted on 1 September 2015, final pension data to be compiled for
assessment. Other Academy School changes – Bandon Hill Primary and Cheam Common
Junior (target conversion 1 November 2015) both will require assessments as at actual
conversion.
The schools are given the option of paying their own employer contribution rate or can opt to
use the agreed stepped contributions following the 2013 valuation. Both will be paying the
stepped rates (24.5% in 2015/16 & 25.5% in 2016/17).

4.7 Bulk Transfers
● Hymans will complete the remaining LGPS TUPE (Partnership) Bulk Transfers with the new
actuary, Barnet Waddingham undertaking future work:
a) Former ASSHH (now Peoples Directorate) staff TUPE transferred to Croydon Equipment
Solutions a scheduled body in the LB Croydon LGPS fund, on 1 October 2012. Close to
settlement.
b) Shared service with Merton, Kingston & Richmond for Legal services from 1 October 2013,
data compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk transfer to Merton LGPS fund. Close to
settlement.
c) Shared service with Kingston for ICT Apps (GIS) from 1 September 2015, data to be
compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk transfer to RBK LGPS fund
d) Shared service with Kingston for Highways & Transportation from 1 November 2015, data
to be compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk transfer to RBK LGPS fund
4.8 Accounting Report FRS17 2014/15
● Barnet Waddingham’s (BW) data requirements for FRS17 / IAS19 reporting, UPM data
extracts and Financial data - whole fund and each employer - was compiled for the Carshalton
College (July Reporting) and the 18 academy schools (August Reporting).
● Reports produced in September and distributed to the College and academy schools for
inclusion in their accounts.

Page 39

Agenda Item 10

4.9 Statistics as at 31 October 2015:
●

Monitoring of Complaints - any cases are referred to the Head of Pensions for consideration
under Stage 1 of the LGPS Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). Such issues are
reviewed and wherever possible are brought to a satisfactory resolution without the need for
reference to Stage 2 of the procedure. During this period there were no such official
complaints received.

●

There were however, two enquiries requiring more complex investigation and resulting in
detailed correspondence confirming the position under the regulations.

Membership
Active (main LGPS)*

31 March
2012

31 March
2013

31 March
2014

31 March
2015**

31 Oct
2015#

3,992

3,937

4,062

4,043

4,466

15

16

(50/50 LGPS)
Preserved

3,351

3,593

3,860

4,138

4,168

Pensioner

3,046

3,097

3,187

3,340

3,412

10,389

10,627

11,109

11,522

12,062

126

195

Total
Opted out of LGPS

89

91

77
(132)

(Full year projection)

Retirements

31 March
2012

31 March
2013

31 March
2014

31 March
2015**

31 Oct
2015

Age (Active)

73

54

64

77

44

Age (from Preserved)

69

52

70

70

36

Early Ill Health

3

5

6

5

3

101

34

27

25

17

246

145

167

177

100

Early Redundancy /
Efficiency
Total new pensions
to date

* Since the introduction of Automatic Enrolment in April 2013 the number of staff being entered or
re-entered into the LGPS has increased as reflected in the Active membership. This has also
resulted in an increase in the number of members opting out of the LGPS although the net result
is an increase of approx 4% in the active membership since March 2013.
** Statistics affected by introduction of new system & by payroll interfacing backlog and will
change once complete.
# Active member records now including backlog of joiners from April 2014 (see 4.4)

Page 40

Agenda Item 10

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Not applicable

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.
Legal

6.2

There are no legal implications arising in this report

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Number
1

Title
Sutton and Kingston Pension Service Background Note

Background Documents
Pension Administration Update September 2015

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 13 November 2015

Consultation with other officers
Officer

Comments Sought

Comments checked by

Finance

Yes

Legal

No

Sue Hogg / Lyndsey Gamble
n/a

Page 41

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

Sutton and Kingston Shared Pension Service
Background Note
Background
Both Kingston and Sutton Council pension administration teams operated previously
used Axise pension system supplied by Heywoods for a number of years.
In September 2013, Heywoods gave notice to both Councils that Axise would be
decommissioned on 1 January 2015 and that all their customers would be required
to ‘upgrade’ to their web based system, Altair.
The upgrade cost to the Pension Fund for both authorities would be in the region of
£1m. A full options appraisal of the market was conducted.
The conclusions from the options analysis made the following recommendations to
both Kingston Commissioning Support Board (CSB) and Sutton Corporate
Management Team (CMT) in February 2014; they were grouped into two phases;
Phase 1
 to jointly re-commission a new pension system and call off Kent Council
Pension Framework.
 to implement the successful procured system by December 2014
 to achieve financial savings on purchase and ongoing support costs
 to implement the self-serve modules that are available on products on the
framework in early 2016.
Phase 2
 to implement a fully shared service between Kingston and Sutton pension
administration teams
A mandate to implement phase 1 and phase 2 was given by both CMT in Sutton and
the CSB in Kingston.
Phase 1 update
Civica were awarded the contract in April 2014 and following successful data
cleansing, data conversion, training and user acceptance testing from the legacy
system to Civica’s product UPM, the new system went live for both pension teams in
December 2014.
A number of migration issues affecting processes and calculations compounded by
new pension legislation meant that the majority of 2015 has been spent rectifying the
issues as well as configuring the standard product to meet the two team’s local
needs.
Employer Self-Serve is currently being configured and following successful testing
will go live in March 2016 with Member Self-Serve following after.
Phase 2 update
Following the successful migration to a new system, a business case with an in
depth options analysis was presented to the Strategic Director Resources and
Kingston CSB and in August 2015 and demonstrated the benefits of sharing the

1

Agenda Item 10

Page 42
Appendix 1

Kingston and Sutton pension administration teams. The benefits of the proposed
option are;
 to capitalise on improving resilience between pension officers to manage
increases in work that occur throughout the year, especially when restructures take place across the organisation.
 to pool pension related knowledge from both teams as well as experience
gained from each team learning to use the new system since go live in
December 2014.
 to drive out any further financial savings that have already been realised from
jointly procuring one software system.
 to create a structure that would allow for succession planning and reduce the
risk created by loss of skills and experience. LGPS is a technical area where
experience of the different schemes is essential. There is a shortage of this
experience in the market.
 the potential for creating a commercial opportunity particularly as more sites
migrate to Civica UPM over the coming years.
The case to share both teams was agreed.
Employing authority
Following business case sign off one authority has to act as the employer for the
staff in a shared service and to this point it had leaned disproportionately towards
Kingston, for this reason, it was proposed that Sutton is the employing authority
A project team is in place to manage the delivery of the phase 2.
This project is part of a growing body of successful shared service work between the
two councils, and a fundamental principle underpinning this work is that all of these
services are truly shared and jointly led.
Governance
Therefore it is the governance arrangements for the new shared service that will
drive all the decision making regarding the shared service. Sutton Council, as the
employing authority, will have administrative responsibility for the staff and
associated support but the business case proposed a shared management structure
that would be responsible for the implementation and delivery of the new shared
service including;
 set strategic direction and associated activities
 agree future revenue and capital investment related to the pension
administration service
 monitor the performance and progress of the shared service against a
common set of performance standards and ensure that planned benefits are
realised
 manage priorities and planning issues arising out of each organisation’s
change programmes that will rely on the shared service.
To support with the shared approach to managing the service, meetings would
alternate between Sutton and Kingston.

2

Page 43

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1

It is important to note that the scope of this project is to share only the pension
administration teams. Each Council will continue to manage their own pension fund;
The Kingston Pension Fund Panel and the Sutton Pension Committee, both of which
are Member led bodies. They both receive regular reports on the performance of the
administration teams and it is therefore proposed that the shared service
management board continue to each body.
It is proposed that the membership of the shared management board include;
director and head of service level from each council as well as the senior
management team of the shared service.
Timescales
The new shared service will go live in April 2016.

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45

Agenda Item 11

Report to:

Pension Committee

Date: 30 November 2015

Report title:

Pension Fund Interim Valuation

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Cllr Sunita Gordon
Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning
020 8770 5358
Lisa Doswell, Treasury and Investments Officer
020 8770 5354

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

1.



A Smart Council

Open
Date:

19 November 2015

Summary

1.1. This report outlines the results of the interim valuation of the Council’s Pension Fund as at 31
March 2015.
2.

Recommendation

2.1

That the Pension Committee notes the outcome of the interim valuation.

3.

Background

3.1

Full actuarial valuations of the Pension Fund are statutorily required every three years to set
minimum employer’s contribution rates. The last full valuation was as at 31 March 2013.

3.2

In the years between full valuations, the Actuary carries out an interim valuation which assesses
the approximate financial position of the fund by updating key factors from the last full valuation.

3.3

The last full valuation was carried out by the previous actuary Hymans Robertson. Since a
slightly different approach to the valuation process was taken by them as compared to that
carried out by the new actuary Barnett Waddingham, information has been provided on the
results of the interim valuation using both methodologies.

4
4.1

Issues
The interim valuation compares the estimated assets of the fund against the estimated liabilities
for future payment of pensions that the fund will need to meet. This interim valuation has been
prepared using two methodologies so that the results can be compared back to those produced
as part of the last full valuation. Firstly using Hyman Robertson’s valuation basis which uses a
gilts plus funding model based on market conditions on the valuation date and secondly using
Barnett Waddingham’s approach using their own Economic Model which they term as a
‘smoothed basis’ since this uses an estimate of the average position over a six month period
spanning the reporting date.

Page 46

Agenda Item 11

4.2

The next full valuation incorporating updates to all data, assumptions and methodology and
based on Barnet Waddingham’s model will value the fund as at 31 March 2016 and will
determine future contribution rates.

4.3

The table below shows the results of the interim valuation as at 31 March 2015.

Date

Hyman
Robertson
Methodology
31 March
31 March
2014
2015
£m
£m

Barnett
Waddingham
Methodology
31 March
31 March
2014
2015
£m
£m

451

510

456

510

644
(193)

774
(264)

634
(178)

717
(207)

70%

66%

72%

71%

Market Value of
Assets
Liabilities
Surplus / Deficit
Funding Level

4.4

The table shows that under both methodologies the funding level of the fund has reduced, albeit
slightly under the Barnett Waddingham methodology. Despite strong performance from all key
asset classes resulting in a positive increase in the market value of assets, the funding level has
reduced due to a significant increase in the cost of liabilities.

4.5

The actual investment returns earned by the Fund affects the value of the Fund’s assets.
However the value of the Fund’s liabilities is dependent on the assumptions used to value the
future benefits payable. The key assumption that has the greatest impact on the valuation of
liabilities is the real discount rate. The higher the real discount rate the lower the value of
liabilities. Under the gilts plus methodology the difference between fixed and index linked
government bonds is used to determine the discount rate. Under the smoothed methodology the
published market implied inflation figures by the Bank of England are used creating differences
between the valuations of the liabilities.

4.6

Using the Hymans methodology the funding level as at 31 March 2015 is 66% and the average
required employer contribution would be 40.6% p.a. of payroll assuming a deficit is to be paid by
2035. In addition, 0.7% p.a. of payroll is required to be paid in respect of expenses. This
compares to a funding level of 70% as per the last interim valuation with employer contributions
of 37.1% of payroll plus 0.7% for expenses.

4.7

Using the Barnett Waddingham methodology the funding level as at 31 March 2015 is 71% with
an average employer contribution of 32.8% of payroll. No additional contributions are required in
respect of expenses as these are allowed for within the financial assumptions used. This
compares with an estimated funding level of 72% and an average required employer
contribution of 30.3% of payroll as at 31 March 2014.
The actuary formally sets employer contribution rates in the statutory triennial valuation. The
interim valuations are advisory and would not normally lead to a change in the contribution rate.

4.8

5

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

The financial implications are addressed within the report.
Legal

5.2

There are no legal issues arising from this report.

Page 47

6

Agenda Item 11

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
None

Title
N/A

Background Documents
Barnett Waddingham Funding Update Report as at 31 March 2015

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 18 November 2015

Comments Sought
Yes
N/A

Comments checked by
Lyndsey Gamble
N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

Agenda Item 12

Pension Committee Work Programme to November 2016
14










March 2016
Member training
Quarterly investment performance to December 2015
Presentation by Baillie Gifford (Pooled Multi Asset) and Pyrford (Pooled Multi Asset)
for investment performance results to December 2015
Approach for the Triennial Actuarial Valuation for March 2016
Compliance statement –Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice
Pension Fund Risk Register
Review of Annual Report
Pension Administration update
Review of Work Programme

June 2016
 Member training
 Quarterly investment performance to March 2016
 Presentation by Harding Loevner (Global Equities) and Schroders (Global Equities)
for investment performance results to March 2016
 Pension Administration update
 Review of Work Programme
July 2016
 Annual General Meeting of the Pension Fund
September 2016
 Member training
 Quarterly investment performance to June 2015
 Presentation by Partners Group (Infrastructure) and Blackrock (Property) for
investment performance results to June 2015
 Annual Report
 Pension Administration update
 Review of Work Programme
November 2016
 Member training
 Quarterly investment performance to September 2015
 Presentation by M&G (Bonds) and Newton (Global Equities) for investment
performance results to September 2015
 Final Triennial Actuarial Valuation of the Pension Fund at 31 March 2016
 Pension Administration update
 Review of Work Programme

This page is intentionally left blank

